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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No. 12-20192-Cr-Moreno

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

LUIS A. QUINTERO,

Defendant.

/

PLEA AGREEM ENT

Theunited StatesAttomey'softiceforthe Southeo DistrictofFloridar dtheunited States

Department of Justice, Tax Division (çsthis Office''l and LUIS A. QUW TERO (hereinafter referred

to as the t'defendanf') enter into the following agreement:

The defendant agrees to waive indictment and plead guilty to a one-couht Information
,

which charges the defendant with willfully failing to file a Report of Foreign Bank and Financial

Accounts for the calendar year 2006, in violation of Title 31
, United States Code, Sections 5314 and

5322(*.

2. The defendant is aware that the sentence will be imposed by the Court after considering

the advisory Federal Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements (hereinaher ççsentencing

Guidelines''). The defendant acknowledges and tmderstands thatthe Court will compute an advisory

sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines and that the applicable guidelines will be determined by
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the Courtrelying in part on the results of a pre-sentence investigation by the Court's probationoffice
,

which investigation will commence after the guilty plea has been entered
. R'he defendant is also

aware that, undercertain circumstances, the Court may depart from the advisory sentencing guideline

range that it has computed, and may raise or lower that advisory sentence under the Sentencing

Guidelines. The defendant is f'urther aware and understands that the Court is required to consider

the advisory guideline range determined underthe Sentencing Guidelines
, but is not bound to impose

a sentence within that advisory range; the Court is permitted to tailor the ultimate sentence in light

of other statutory concerns, and such sentence may be either more severe or less severe than the

Sentencing Guidelines' advisory range. Knowing these facts, the defendant understands and

acknowledges that the Court has the authority to impose any sentence within and up to the statutory

maximum authorized by 1aw for the offensets) identified in paragraph 1 and that the defendant may

not withdraw the plea solely as a result of the sentence imposed
.

3. The defendant also understands and acknowledges that the Court may impose a statutory

maximum term of imprisonment of up to tive years
, followed by a term of supervised release of up

to three years. ln addition to a tenn of imprisonment and supervised release
, the court m ay impose

a fine of up to $250,000 or twice the gross gain or loss resulting from the offense
, whichever is

greater, and may impose restitution.

4. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that
, in addition to any sentence

imposed under paragraph 3 of this agreement
, a special assessment in the amotmt of $100.00 will

be imposed on the defendant. The defendant agrees that any special assessment imposed shall
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be paid at the time of sentencing. If a defendant is financially unable to pay the special assessment
,

the defendant agrees to present evidence to this Office and the Court at the time of sentencing as to

the reasons for the defendant's failure to pay.

5. This Office reserves the right to inform the Court and the probation office of a1l facts

pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant information concem ing the offenses

committed, whether charged or not, as well as concerning the defendant and the defendant's

background. Subject only to the express terms of any agreed-upon sentencing recommendations

contained in this agreement, this Oftice further reserves the right to make any recommendation as

to the quality and quantity of punishment.

6. The United States agrees that it will recommend at sentencing that the Court reduce by

two levels the sentencing guideline level applicable to the defendant's offense
, pursuant to Section

3E1 . 1(a) of the Sentencing Guidelines, based upon the defendant's recognition and affirmative and

timely acceptance of personal responsibility. If at the time of sentencing the defendant's offense

level is determined to be 16 or greater, the government will file a motion requesting an additional

one level decrease pursuant to Section 3E1 .1(b) of the Sentencing Guidelines, stating that the

defendant has assisted authorities in the investigation or prosecution of the defendant's own

misconduct by timely notifying authorities of the defendant's intention to enter a plea of guilty
,

thereby permitting the govenunent to avoid preparing for trial and permitting the government and

the Court to allocate their resotlrces efticiently. The United States further agrees to recommend that

the defendant be sentenced at the low end of the guideline range
, as that range is determined by the

Court. The United States, however, will not be required to make this motion and these

recommendations if the defendant: (1) fails or refuses to make a 111,acctzrate and complete
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disclosure to the probation office of the circumstances surrounding the relevant offense conduct; (2)

is found to have misrepresented facts to the government prior to entering into this plea agreement;

or (3) commits any misconduct after entering into this plea agreement, including but not limited to

committing a state or federal offense, violating any term of release
, or making false statements or

misrepresentations to any govemmental entity or official.

7. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the Court
. The

defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or sen' tence that the

defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's attomey
, the govermnent,

or the probation oftice, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the govelmment
, the

probation offke or the Court. The defendant tmderstands further that any recommendation that the

government makes to the Court as to sentencing, whether pursuant to this agreement or otherwise
,

is not binding on the Court and the Court may disregard the recommendation in its entirety
. The

defendant understands and acknowledges, as previously acknowledged in paragraph 3 above, that

the defendant may not withdraw his plea based upon the Court's decision not to accept a sentencing

recommendation made bythe defendant, the government
, or arecommendation madejointly by both

the defendant and the government.

8. This Office and the defendant agree that, although not binding on the probation office or

the Court, they will jointly recommend that the Court make the following findings and conclusions

as to the sentence to be imposed:

a. Pursuant to USSG j2S 1.3(c), because this offense was committed for the purposes

of violating the lnternal Revenue laws, the applicable guidelines are USSG jj 2T1. 1

and 2T4.1.

Under USSG j 2T1.1(a)(2), the base offense level is 6.b.
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The Specific Offense Characteristic of sophisticated means under USSG j 2T1.1 (b)

(2) applies. This results in an increase of the offense level to level 12.

A. The defendant agrees to cooperate with the Intemal Revenue Service (''IRS'')

in its civil examination, determination
, assessment, and collection of income taxes related to the

defendant's 2005 through 2007 income tax returns and any related comorate/entity tax returns
, and

fufther agrees not to conceal, transfer
, or dissipate funds or property that could be used to satisfy

such taxes, penalties, and interest. The defendant agrees to provide the 1RS any documentation in

the defendant's possession and/or control requested by the IRS in connection with its civil

examination, determination, assessment, and collection of such income taxes prior to sentencing.

The defendant further knowingly and voluntmily agrees to waive any statute of limitations with

respect to assessment and collection of the defendant's individual and corporate/entity tax liabilities

concerning tax years 2005 through 2007.

B. The defendant agrees to prepare and tile accurate amended individual and

com orate/entity income tax returns for the tax years 2005 tllrough 2007
. The defendant agrees to

use his best efforts to sign Closing Agreements with the IRS prior to the time of sentencing for the

years 2005 through 2007.Further, the defendant will provide the 1RS with information regarding

the years covered by the Closing Agreements
, and will pay promptly all additional taxes, penalties

and interest assessed by the IRS, if any, as well as any additional amounts determined by the IRS.

Nothing in this agreement shall limit the lRS in its civil determination
, assessment, and collection

of any taxes, interest, and/or penalties that the defendant may owe
.

The defendant agrees that any statements made by the defendant to the IRS

and/or in this agreement shall be admissible against the defendant without any limitation in any civil

or criminal proceeding and the defendant stipulates to the authenticity and admissibility
, in any civil
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or criminal proceeding, of any documentation provided by the defendant to the IRS. The defendant

hereby waives any protection afforded by Rule 410 of the Federal Rules of Evidence and Rule 1 1(9

of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure with regard to any such statements and documentation.

In the event that the defendant withdraws from this agreement prior to pleading guilty and/or fails

to fully comply with any of the terms of this agreement, the United States will, at its option, be

released from its obligations under this agreement, but under no circumstances shall the defendant

be released from the agreements and waivers made by the defendant in this and the preceding two

paragraphs.

D. The defendant further agrees that in order to resolve his civil liability for

failing to tile Reports of Foreign Bank and Finmwial Accounts
, Forms TD F 90-22.1, for tax years

2005 through 2007, he will pay a tifty percent penalty for the one year with the highest aggregate

balance inthe accounts as of December3l forcalendaryears 2005through 2007
, that is, fihypercent

of $4,005,618, which is the aggregate balance as of December 31, 2006 of two accounts at UBS AG
,

a Swiss bank.

10. The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Code, Sedion 3742 and Title 28
,

United States Code, Section 1291 afford the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed in

this case. Acknowledging this, in exchange for the tmdertakings made by the United States in this

plea agreement, the defendant hereby waives all rights conferred by Sections 3742 and 1291 to

appeal any sentence imposed, including any restitution order, or to appeal the manner in which the

sentence was imposed, unless the sentence exceeds the maximum permitted by statute or is the result

of an upward departure and/or an upward variance from the advisory guideline range that the Court

establishes at sentencing. The defendant further tmderstands that nothing in this agreem ent shall

affect the govemment's right and/or duty to appeal as set forth in Title18
, United States Code,
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Section 3742*) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 1291.However, if the United States

appeals the defendant's sentence pursuant to Sections 3742*) and 1291, the defendant shall be

released from the above waiver of appellate rights. By signing this agreement, the defendant

acknowledges that the defendant has discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this agreement with the

defendant's attonwy. The defendant further agrees, together with the United States, to request that

the Court enter a specifc tinding that the defendant's waiver of the defendant's right to appeal the

sentence to be imposed in this case was knowing and voluntary.

1 1. This is the entire agreement and tmderstanding between this Oftsce and the defendant.

There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings.

W IFREDO A. FERRER

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

7,k ( 'l-Date: B :y

ANA M ARIA M A RTINEZ

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

) '#By: '
TODD A. ELLW W OOD

TRIAL ATTORNEY

U.S. DEPT. OF JUSTICE, TAX DIVISION
.....- .... fpy.---

B :y

IAN COM ISKY, 1RE

AT EY FOR DEFEN DAN T

By:

* ls A. QUIXTERO
DEFENbANT

o-t-, A4t-:/1'u

* - 2 (. ' ) a.Date :

' 

tl-t 'lzoate: t?
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